
         

 

 

WINDING CYPRESS 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 
 

COLLIER COUNTY 
 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

NOVEMBER 2, 2023 
1:00 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Special District Services, Inc. 
The Oaks Center 

2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

www.windingcypresscdd.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



AGENDA 
 WINDING CYPRESS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Clubhouse at Winding Cypress 
7180 Winding Cypress Drive 

Naples, Florida 34114 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

November 2, 2023 
1:00 p.m. 

 
 

A. Call to Order 

B. Pledge of Allegiance 

C. Proof of Publication..................................................................................................................................Page 1 

D. Establish a Quorum 

E. Additions or Deletions to Agenda  

F. Approval of Minutes  

1. October 5, 2023 Regular Board Meeting…………………………………………………………..Page 2 

2. October 19, 2023 Workshop……………………………………………………………………….Page 6 

G. Old Business 

H. New Business 

1. Consider Approval of Engineering Proposal………………………………………………………Page 8 

2. Community Disaster Resilience Zone Memo Discussion…………………………………………Page 9 

I. Administrative Matters 

1. Manager’s Report 

 Financials……………………………………………………………………………………….Page 10 

2. Engineer’s Report 

3. Attorney’s Report 

J. Comments from the Public for Items Not on the Agenda 

K. Board Members Comments 

L. Adjourn 



Publication Date
2023-10-23

Subcategory
Miscellaneous Notices

NOTICE OF BOARD MEETING OF THE
WINDING CYPRESS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
The Board of Supervisors of the Winding Cypress Community Development District (the District) will hold a
Board Meeting on November 2, 2023, at 1:00 p.m. at the Clubhouse at Winding Cypress located at 7180
Winding Cypress Drive, Naples, Florida 34114.
The Board Meeting is open to the public and will be conducted in accordance with the provisions of Florida
law for community development districts. The Board Meeting may be continued in progress without additional
notice to a time, date, and location stated on the record. A copy of the agenda for the Board Meeting may be
obtained from the Districts website or from the District Manager, Special District Services, located at 2501A
Burns Road, Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33410. There may be occasions when one or more Supervisors will
participate by telephone.
Pursuant to provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations
to participate in this Board Meeting is asked to advise the District O�ce at least forty-eight (48) hours before
the meeting by contacting the District Manager at (561) 630-4922 and/or toll free at 1-877-737-4922. If you
are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the Florida Relay Service at 1-800-955-8770, who can aid you
in contacting the District O�ce.
A person who decides to appeal any decision made at this Board Meeting with respect to any matter
considered at the Board Meeting is advised that person will need a record of the proceedings and that
accordingly, the person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made including the
testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.
Meetings may be cancelled from time to time without advertised notice.
WINDING CYPRESS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
www.windingcypresscdd.org
10/23/2023 #9414432

Page 1



Page 1 of 4 
 

WINDING CYPRESS 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
OCTOBER 5, 2023 

 
 

 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The  October 5, 2023, Regular Board Meeting of the Winding Cypress Community Development District 
(the “District”) was called to order at 1:03 p.m. at the Clubhouse at Winding Cypress located at 7180 
Winding Cypress Drive, Naples, Florida 34114. 
 
B. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
C. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Proof of publication was presented that Notice of the Regular  Board Meeting had been published in the 
Naples Daily News on September 26, 2023, as legally required. 
 
D. ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
It was determined that the attendance of the following Supervisors constituted a quorum and it was in order 
to proceed with the meeting: 
 
Chairman Barbara Powell Present 
Vice Chairman Alex Petrovsky Present 
Supervisor Scott Spitzer Present 
Supervisor Patrick Cirello Present 
Supervisor Paul Ellwood Absent 

 
Also present were the following Staff members: 
 
District Manager Michelle Krizen Special District Services, Inc. 
District Counsel Alyssa Willson (via phone) Kutak Rock 

 
Also present were those indicated on the attached sign-in sheet. 
 
E. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
There was a consensus of the Board to move Public Comment for Items Not on the Agenda to the end of 
the meeting. 
 
F. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 1.  August 15, 2023, Public Hearing & Regular Board Meeting 
 
The minutes of the August 15, 2023, Public Hearing & Regular Board Meeting were presented for 
consideration. 

Page 2



Page 2 of 4 
 

Under Resolution 2023-16, it should read:  “A Motion was made by Ms. Powell , seconded by Mr. Ciriello 
and passed unanimously adopting Resolution 2023-26, as presented.”  In error it read Resolution 2023-15. 
 
Also under the Manager’s Report, Consider Resolution No 2023-17 incorrectly has “Authorized” spelled 
as “Author8ized”.  
 
A motion was then made by Mr. Cirello, seconded by Mr. Spitzer and passed unanimously approving the 
minutes of the August 15, 2023, Public Hearing & Regular Board Meeting, as amended. 
 
G. OLD BUSINESS 
 
Ms. Powell gave a brief review of the RFQ and of the last few months.  An update on Forensic Engineering 
was provided by Mr. Spitzer.  He has reached out to the law firm and Forensic.  Nothing has been scheduled 
as of yet.  
 
Dragonfly has requested a rain delay- A discussion ensued regarding the waterlines and ensuring that 
Dragonfly can complete the work as contracted.  
 
H. NEW BUSINESS 
 1.  Review RFQ Results and Consider Selection of the District Engineer 
  
An RFQ response was received from Agnoli, Barber & Brundage, Inc.  Each Board Member received a 
spiralbound book with information.  Each Board Member also had a copy of the evaluation criteria to use 
for rating that had previously been adopted by the Boar.  
 
A motion was made  by Mr. Petrovsky, seconded by Ms. Powell and passed unanimously recessing the 
Regular Board Meeting until 1:40 p.m. to allow the Supervisors time to review the material and rate, 
individually, prior to Board discussion.  
 
Ms. Wilson reminded the Board that since the Board was on recess, there could be no discussion amongst 
the Board Members due to the Sunshine Law.  
 
The Regular Board Meeting was called back to order at 1:40 p.m. 
 
Ms. Powell used the evaluation criteria to guide discussion prior to asking each member for a rating.  Ms. 
Krizen used an average of the Board Members’ responses to come up with an overall rating.  An overall 
average of 85.95 was earned.  
 
A motion was by Ms. Powell, seconded by Mr. Petrovsky and passed unanimously authorizing the Chair 
and District staff to negotiate the execution of a contract with Agnoli, Barber & Brundage, Inc. to serve as 
District Engineer.  
 
 2.  Consider Resolution No. 2023-18 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Amended Budget 
 
Resolution No. 2023-18 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-18 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE WINDING 
CYPRESS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT AUTHORIZING AND 

Page 3



Page 3 of 4 
 

ADOPTING AN AMENDED FINAL FISCAL YEAR 2022/2023 BUDGET 
(“AMENDED BUDGET”), PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 189, FLORIDA 
STATUTES; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
Prior to voting on Resolution 2023-18, the item was opened up for public comment.  Anne Cooley, a District 
resident, thanked the Board for their hard work. 
 
Mr. Dyckman asked about the money for potential lawsuits. It was explained that this was a look back at 
last year’s (2022/2023) budget and what was actually spent.  The potential litigation money is in the current 
budget (2023/2024).  
 
A motion was made by Ms. Powell, seconded by Mr. Spitzer and passed unanimously adopting Resolution 
No. 2023-18, as presented. 
 
 3.  Consider Resolution No. 2023-19 – Adopting a Revised Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Meeting 
Schedule 
 
Resolution No. 2023-19 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-19 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE WINDING 
CYPRESS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, ESTABLISHING A 
REGULAR MEETING SCHEDULE & WORKSHOP SCHEDULE FOR FISCAL 
YEAR 2023/2024 AND SETTING THE TIME AND LOCATION OF SAID 
DISTRICT MEETINGS; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
This resolution is being presented since there are 18 meetings scheduled, a combination of Regular Board 
Meetings and Workshops. 
 
A motion was made by Ms. Powell, seconded by Mr. Cirello and passed unanimously adopting Resolution 
No. 2023-19, as presented. 
 
I. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
 1.  Manager’s Report 
 
Ms. Krizen presented the financials.  There were no questions from the Board Members 
 
Ms. Krizen reminded the Board that the new budget fiscal year had officially started, however until about 
December, there is no income. Ms. Krizen advised that on previous bills the engineer and District Counsel 
were being contacted directly by multiple Supervisors.  Ms. Krizen suggested that she be the first contact, 
as oftentimes, multiple Supervisors have the same question(s) and if Ms. Krizen fields them, it would be 
less costly to the District.  Ms. Krizen will contact the correct person if unable to provide an answer herself.  
 
 2.  Attorney’s Report 
 
Ms. Willson had nothing further to report, but was available for questions. 
 
J. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 

Page 4



Page 4 of 4 
 

There were no further comments from the Board Members. 
 
K. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
Mr. Dyckman had some lake bank concerns/ 
 
L. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, the Regular Board Meeting was adjourned at 
2:40 p.m. on a motion made by Ms. Powell, seconded by Mr. Cirello and passed unanimously. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
    
Chairman/Vice Chairman Secretary/Assistant Secretary 
 
 
Date Approved   
 
 
 

Page 5



WINDING CYPRESS 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

WORKSHOP MEETING 
OCTOBER 19, 2023 

 
 

 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The  October 19, 2023, Workshop Meeting of the Winding Cypress Community Development 
District (the “District”) was called to order at 1:06 p.m. at the Clubhouse at Winding Cypress 
located at 7180 Winding Cypress Drive, Naples, Florida 34114. 
 
B. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
C. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Proof of publication was presented that Notice of the Workshop Meeting had been published in 
the Naples Daily News on October 9, 2023, as legally required. 
 
D. ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
It was determined that the attendance of the following Supervisors constituted a quorum and it was 
in order to proceed with the meeting: 
 
Chairman Barbara Powell Present 
Vice Chairman Alex Petrovsky Present 
Supervisor Scott Spitzer Present 
Supervisor Patrick Cirello Present 
Supervisor Paul Ellwood Absent 

 
Also present were the following Staff members: 
 
District Manager Michelle Krizen Special District Services, Inc. 
District Engineer Ted Tryka 

 

 
E. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
There was an addition of FEMA information to be shared with the Board. 
 
F. DISCUSSIONS WITH THE ENGINEER 
 
A discussion occurred explaining the turnover status and the concern of erosion in the lake banks. 
It was shared with the engineer that legal action was being considered with the developer. All 
future decisions by the Board will based off the lake bank report. The lawyers consulted have 

Page 6



wanted to see a report.  Some of the questions that the Board had included: is there a causal 
relationship, are the lakes in need of repair due to the lack of maintenance?  The status of the 
permits and a previous site visit with SFWMD was also discussed.  A visit was made in April 
however no contact from SFWMD has been made since the visit.  The District Engineer, Ted 
Tryka, stated that he would look at the lake bank in a technical manner.  Ideally the inspection 
would occur in the spring when the lakes are at the lowest water levels.  Mr. Tryka reported that 
he has an inspector that he uses for lake banks but he is “hands on” and oversees the work.  Mr. 
Tryka will create a proposal to share with the Board for an initial inspection plan/overview. This 
will be shared for discussion/consideration at the November 2, 203, Board meeting.  
 
G. FEMA COMMUNITY DISASTER RESILIENCE ZONES 
 
Mr. Spitzer shared a website link and narrative about Community Disaster Resilience Zones. This 
is a new FEMA program and Winding Cypress is located in one of the 483 areas identified 
nationwide.  Ms. Krizen reached out to a FEMA consultant who is attending training and will share 
more information as it becomes available.  The Board was in agreement if there was an opportunity 
to receive a grant or assistance, it should be explored.  
 
H. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
 
Several residents shared their concerns regarding erosion or slope issues.  
 
I. MANAGER UPDATES 

 
 

The next Board Meeting is scheduled for November 2, 2023, and the next Workshop Meeting is 
scheduled for November 16, 2023. 
 
J. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
There were no further comments from the Board Members. 
 
K. ADJOURNMENT 
 
A motion was made by Ms. Powell, seconded by Mr. Spitzer and passed unanimously adjourning 
the Workshop Meeting at 2:30 p.m.   

 
 
 
 
 
    
Chairman/Vice Chairman Secretary/Assistant Secretary 
 
 
Date Approved   
 

Page 7



CONSIDER APPROVAL OF 
ENGINEERING PROPOSAL 

 
TO BE DISTRIBUTED 

UNDER SEPARATE COVER 

Page 8



To: Board of Supervisors, Winding Cypress Community Development District 
From: Scott Spitzer, Supervisor WCCDD 
Date: October 25, 2023 
Re: FEMA Community Disaster Resilience Zones (CDRZ) 
 
Our Board Secretary was kind enough to provide me with notice of a FEMA informational 
webinar about Community Disaster Resilience Zones. Below are some of my takeaways from the 
national webinar held earlier today. 
 
1)FEMA has designated 483 census tracts throughout the US as CDRZ tracts to receive targeted 
federal support to become more resilience to natural hazards and extreme weather worsened by 
the climate crisis.   
 
2)The CDRZ designations have been made through a National Risk Index based on a variety of 
factors including communities at risk to 18 natural hazards as well as vetting with the White 
House Council on Environmental Quality Climate and Economic Justice screening tool.  They 
mentioned aging population areas as one indicator of a community’s vulnerability and need for 
disaster resilience.  The designated census tracts don’t follow county, township or other 
jurisdictional lines. 
 
3)California has the highest number of these designated census tracts (51), and Florida is second 
nationally (32). There will be more designated CDRZ tracts in a second tranche to include tribal 
areas and territories in December.  This is the first round of designations. There may be 
changes/additions as the process continues.  
 
4)Winding Cypress as well as Lely Resort and Verona Walk appear in one of these 483 
designated census tracts. I confirmed this by viewing their online interactive map. You can 
review this as well through the FEMA website  
 
5)Funding to States: 
They’ve set aside $400,000 for funding to each state to build support for CDRZ designations.  
 
6) Who Can Receive Funding: 
Funding will be available for various levels of governments and local communities; it isn’t 
limited to state or interlocal governmental levels.  Technical assistance to prepare cost-benefit 
analysis for grant proposals can be obtained from them.  
 
7)Cost Share: 
The funding and assistance that will be available under this program is attractive; federal costs 
sharing is more favorable than other programs---the federal share can be 90% of the total.   
 
8)Timing:  
There will be another webinar on October 31st.  After that webinar they will send out copies of 
the webinar slides.  The application period ends February 29, 2024. 

Page 9



 Winding Cypress
Community Development District

   Financial Report For
September 2023

Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16


	Winding Cypress Community Development District - November 2, 2023 Regular Board Meeting Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	Approval of Minutes
	October 5, 2023 Regular Board Meeting
	October 19, 2023 Workshop

	Consider Approval of Engineering Proposal
	Community Disaster Resilience Zone Memo Discussion
	Financials




